
 
       SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE 
     FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION 

 
                                COMMISSIONERS 

Mike Sangiacomo (Sonoma)     Bob Anderson (Healdsburg) 
Todd Mendoza (Petaluma)                                                                                                     Eric Koenigshofer (Occidental)   
Dee Swanhuyser (Sebastopol)                  Jeff Owen (Alternate) 
                        

Regular Meeting 
747 Mendocino Avenue – Suite 100, Santa Rosa, CA 95401 

April 9, 2015    5:00 pm 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

       1.    Call to Order. 
 

2. Agenda Items to be Held or Taken Out of Order; Off-Agenda Items. 
 
      3.   General Announcements Not Requiring Deliberation or Decision. 

 
      4.    Public Comment. 

      The Brown Act requires that time be set aside for public comment on items not agendized. 
 

      5.   Correspondence/Communication. 
 
      6.     Approval of Commission Minutes.         [Attachment 1] 

March 5, 2015          
  
  7. Ad Hoc Committee Reports.   

• Annual Report/Audit Report Review (Anderson, Swanhuyser)                 
• Investment (Swanhuyser, Owen) 
• Review of County Services (Mendoza, Koenigshofer) 
• Stewardship (Mendoza, Sangiacomo) 
• Operation and Maintenance Transaction Review (Anderson, Koenigshofer) 
• Matching Grant Program (Koenigshofer, Owen) 

 
       8.  Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance – Review Revised Policy.          [Attachment 2] 
       Carried over from November 6, 2014, February 5, 2015, March 5, 2015 
 
       9.  Adjournment. 
       Suggested Next Meeting:   May 7, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
        

 
  

      
 

 
 

                                

 
  

  
   
                

   
   

   
                          

  
 

  
  

                            
   

 
 
 
 

 
Fiscal Oversight Commission Agenda 04.09.15 
 



 
 
 
 

In compliance with Government Code §54954.2(a), the Sonoma County Open Space Fiscal Oversight 
Commission will, on request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons 
with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the ADA of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12132), and the Federal 
rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in another 
format or need a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Sue Jackson at 
707.565.7346 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. 
Pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, a copy of all documents related to an item on this agenda 
submitted to the Fiscal Oversight Commission may be obtained from the Fiscal Oversight Commission 
office, 747 Mendocino Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95401. 

Fiscal Oversight Commission Agenda 04.09.15                                                                                          page 2 



SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE 
   FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION 

 

COMMISSIONERS 
Mike Sangiacomo (Sonoma)                     Bob Anderson (Healdsburg)     
Todd Mendoza (Petaluma)            Eric Koenigshofer (Occidental) 
Dee Swanhuyser (Sebastopol)                           Jeff Owen (Alternate) 

 
UNAPPROVED  

Minutes for Meeting of March 5, 2015 
 

Commissioners Present:  Koenigshofer (Chair), Anderson (Vice Chair), Mendoza, Swanhuyser, Owen 
         
Staff Present:  Bill Keene, General Manager; Mary Dodge, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager; 
Sheri Emerson, Program Manager – Stewardship; Misti Arias, Program Manager – Acquisitions; Jacob 
Newell, Associate Planner – Stewardship; Sara Press, Land Acquisition Associate; Jennifer Kuszmar, 
Associate Planner – Matching Grant Coordinator; Martha (Marty) McCoy, Counsel; Sue Gallagher, 
Counsel; Christine Minkel, Administrative Aide to the Commission, Sue Jackson, Deputy Clerk/Recorder-
Fiscal Oversight Commission. 
 
1.       Call to Order.       
           Commissioner Koenigshofer called the meeting to order at 5:04 pm. 
 
2. Agenda Items to be Held or Taken Out of Order; Off Agenda Items. 

There were none. 
  
3. General Announcements Not Requiring Deliberation or Decision. 

Mr. Keene made the following announcements: 
• On March 14, 2015, the East Slope Sonoma Mountain Trail opening and dedication will be 

celebrated at Jack London Park. The event begins at 10:30 am.  
• On March 23, 2015, the North Sonoma Mountain Regional Park and Open Space Preserve 

ribbon-cutting and dedication will take place at the Jacobs Ranch staging area. The event is 
from 2:00 pm to 3:00 pm with an optional hike after the program.  

  
4. Public Comment. 
 There was none. 
 
5.       Correspondence/Communication. 

There was none. 
 

6.     Approval of Commission Minutes. 
On a motion by Commissioner Anderson and second by Commissioner Swanhuyser, the minutes 
of January 15, 2015 were approved as submitted.  
 

7.     Ad Hoc Committee Reports. 
• Annual Report/Audit Report Review – nothing to report.   
• Investment – nothing to report. 
• Review of County Services – nothing to report. 
•     Stewardship – nothing to report. 

Fiscal Oversight Commission Minutes 03.05.15                                                                Attachment 1  
                                                                                                                             
   



• Operation and Maintenance Transaction Review – nothing to report. 
• Matching Grant Program – nothing to report. 

 
8.    Creation of Ad Hoc Committees for 2015 and Assignment of Commissioners. 

   Commissioner Koenigshofer assigned Commissioner Swanhuyser to the Investment Committee,                           
replacing Commissioner Mendoza. All other assignments remain the same. 

 
9.    Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance. 

Ms. Emerson presented a revised version of the proposed policy, based on input received from 
the Advisory Committee and the Fiscal Oversight Commission. She reported that the Advisory 
Committee approved the version being presented at this time to the Commission. The 
Commission discussed the key proposed revisions to the policy, and made recommendations for 
changes to clarify the policy. The Commission requested that the policy be brought back for 
further review at the next regularly scheduled meeting on April 9, 2015.  

 
10. Windsor Town Green Amendment to Conservation Easement Update. 

Mr. Keene updated the Commission on progress made in negotiations with the Town of Windsor 
regarding a second amendment to the Windsor Town Green Easement. He reported that the 
Town is not interested in pursuing a second amendment, that it is not required to agree upon or 
execute a second amendment, and that, therefore, the matter is closed.  
  

11.     Closed Session. 
The Commission adjourned to Closed Session at 5:47 pm. Commissioner Anderson recused himself 
from the meeting at this time. 

 
12. Report on Closed Session. 
 The Commission reconvened to Open Session at 7:03 pm and reported the following: 
 
 Foppiano Vineyards                  Resolution No. 2015-001 

On a motion by Alternate Commissioner Owen and second by Commissioner Mendoza, and with 
the inclusion of APN numbers, the Commission approved the resolution determining that the 
District is not paying more or receiving less than Fair Market Value for the purchase of a 
conservation easement over the Foppiano Vineyards property.  

 
 The vote was as follows: 
 

SANGIACOMO:  Absent  MENDOZA:  _Aye_   SWANHUYSER: _Aye 
 

ANDERSON:  Abstain     KOENIGSHOFER:  _Aye_     OWEN:   Aye 
 

AYES:      4 NOES:    0        ABSTAIN:   1       ABSENT:    1 
 

13. Adjournment.  Commissioner Koenigshofer adjourned the meeting at 7:05 pm.  
 Suggested Next Meeting:   April 2, 2015 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Sue Jackson 
Deputy Clerk/Recorder 

Fiscal Oversight Commission Minutes 03.05.15                                                                Attachment 1  
                                                                                                                             
   



 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  April 2, 2015  (Meeting April 9, 2015) 
 
TO:  Fiscal Oversight Commission 
 
FROM:  Sheri Emerson, Stewardship Program Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Draft Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy 
 
At our last meeting (March 5, 2015) you discussed the draft District Initial Public Access, 
Operation and Maintenance Policy. In order to evaluate the potential costs associated with 
providing initial public access to the current portfolio of District-owned recreational properties, 
you requested that District staff work with Parks staff to provide information regarding the 
scope of improvements deemed necessary for this purpose, and rough estimate of cost.  
 
District staff will present this information at your April 9th meeting. Parks staff will be in 
attendance and will be available to answer related questions. 

Fiscal Oversight Commission 04.09.2015 IPA O&M Revised Draft                                Attachment 2  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DRAFT  
DISTRICT INITIAL PUBLIC ACCESS, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE POLICY 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On November 7, 2006, the voters of Sonoma County approved the Sonoma County Open Space, 
Clean Water, and Farmland Protection Measure (Measure F, included as Appendix A), extending 
the District’s sales tax to March 31, 2031.  The measure, via an Expenditure Plan, authorized the 
use of sales tax revenues towards the protection of five listed open space designations:  
 

• Community separators and greenbelts;  
• Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors;  
• Agriculturally productive lands;  
• Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors; and other areas of biotic significance, and  
• Other open space projects. 

 
The purpose of the Expenditure Plan “will be accomplished primarily through the purchase of 
development rights from willing sellers” and may include the purchase of “fee interests for 
outdoor public recreation where the public use would not be inconsistent with the open space 
designations…” 
 
The District’s Expenditure Plan also allowed for funding towards “operation and maintenance of 
land” (paragraph 6):  
 

“Operation and maintenance of land includes limited funding for initial public access, 
operation and maintenance of recreational lands purchased in accordance with this 
Plan. No more than 10 percent of total revenues generated over the life of the Measure 
shall be made available for operation and maintenance purposes.”  

 
The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation & Open Space District (District) Board of Directors 
established policy related to Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance (IPAOM) in 
August of 2007 through Board Resolution 07-0666 (Appendix B). This policy was updated in 
October of 2013 through Board Resolution 13-0410 (Appendix C).  
 
Under the amended policy, District expenditures eligible for inclusion within the 10% cap on 
IPAOM expenditures include:  

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update (February 20, 2015 revision) 
Page 1 of 5 



 
• Payments to entities receiving fee transfer of District-protected recreational properties 

for the purposes of funding operation and maintenance costs that support initial public 
access;  

• Resource management and infrastructure maintenance on District-owned lands 
intended for recreational use;   

• Providing interim access or permit programs, public outings and educational programs 
on District-protected recreational lands;   

• Capital improvements to provide initial public access on District-protected lands 
intended for recreational use; and  

• District staff and legal costs related to all of the above.  

INTENT OF POLICY UPDATE 
 
Since the passage of Measure F in 2006, the District has spent nearly 10% of collected 
sales tax revenues in accordance with Board policy.  Competition for the IPAOM funds is 
anticipated to remain strong and it has become clear that further clarification of the 
existing policy is needed to ensure equitable and appropriate use of those funds.   
 
To preserve open space and ensure fiscal responsibility, the District supports a low-
impact, low-cost approach to providing recreational opportunities, where appropriate, 
on District-protected lands.  This approach is consistent with the District’s mission 
statement, which is:   

 
“The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
permanently protects the diverse agricultural, natural resource, and scenic  
open space lands of Sonoma County for future generations.” 

 
Further, this approach carries out explicit direction within the Expenditure Plan that “public use 
would not be inconsistent with the open space designations.”   
 
Limiting recreational improvements to those that are necessary to provide initial public access, 
along with investing in preliminary planning for and initial operation and maintenance of those 
improvements, reduces the impact to the environment and reduces long term maintenance 
and operational costs.  This approach also allows for flexible use of revenues over the life of the 
Measure F. 
 
Consistent with the existing IPAOM policy, the Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance 
Reserve (IPAOM Reserve) will continue to be used on District-protected lands intended for 
recreational use, to:  
 

• Responsibly manage natural resources and maintain infrastructure on District-owned 
lands;   

• Provide early public access through interim programs on District-owned lands;   
 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update (February 20, 2015 revision) 
Page 2 of 5 



 
• Reimburse partners providing initial public access, operation and maintenance for lands 

protected by the District; and 
 

• Assist partners to create diverse, low impact, basic recreational amenities that support a 
variety of outdoor activities on lands protected by the District.   

 
The District will treat all partners equitably, and will reimburse partners in a timely manner.  
 
The IPAOM Reserve is not a source of ongoing funding.  Funding will be provided for a 
maximum of three years, unless extraordinary circumstances can be demonstrated.  Entities 
receiving funding are expected to demonstrate that their costs reflect market rates and 
standard practices for planning, developing, operating and maintaining recreational lands.  
Entities will be subject to a transfer or funding agreement, to the terms of a conservation 
easement to be retained by the District and to the provisions of a required recreation covenant. 
The District will conduct an annual review and audit.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURE 
  
The District General Manager will recommend an annual appropriation for the IPAOM Reserve 
that equals up to 10% of the revenue collected during the previous fiscal year. Recreational 
partners and the District will be eligible for reimbursement from the IPAOM Reserve for 
qualified expenses.  Projects proposed by partnering entities will be reviewed by the Fiscal 
Oversight Commission and approved by the Board of Directors prior to reimbursement. 
 
Qualifying expenditures include low-impact/low-cost activities, including minimal 
improvements that facilitate initial public access. Examples of minimal improvements include 
basic recreational amenities such as multiple-use natural surface trails and unpaved parking 
areas, fencing, gates, related signage, and portable or temporary restroom facilities.  
Preliminary planning for, and operation and maintenance of, minimal improvements are 
included.  Universal access opportunities will be considered for inclusion in part of initial public 
access where appropriate, in relation to property constraints and in accordance with law.   
 
Qualifying expenditures typically do not include off-site road work or major internal road work 
(turn lanes, ingress road upgrades or realignments), major water or sewer infrastructure 
improvements, overnight accommodations (huts, hotels, yurts, cabins, tent pads), or more 
developed recreational amenities (play structures, covered picnic areas).   On occasion, there 
may be extraordinary circumstances specific to a particular property already owned by the 
District (as of the Board approval date of this policy) that would justify a contribution towards 
improvements that are otherwise not included in this policy but necessary to provide initial 
public access.  These will be approved on a case by case basis by the Board of Directors after 
review by the Fiscal Oversight Commission.  Any such contribution by the District would be 
capped at 25% of the total IPAOM request.  This approach ensures that the majority of funds 
will be available for typical qualifying expenditures.     
 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update (February 20, 2015 revision) 
Page 3 of 5 



 
Reimbursements from the IPAOM Reserve to the District and to other entities will be reviewed 
at the end of each fiscal year by the Fiscal Oversight Commission, in accordance with Sonoma 
County Board of Supervisors Resolution 10-0832, confirming that expenditures are consistent 
with the Expenditure Plan.  
 
Reimbursement payments to partners receiving interest in a District-protected recreational 
property will be for a period not to exceed three years, commencing from the date when the 
recreational partner receives the property interest, and shall be made on a reimbursement 
basis according to a District-approved Work Plan. The District may grant an extension of the 
three-year time frame in the case of extraordinary circumstances.  
 
The Board of Directors will retain the flexibility to re-allocate funds from the IPAOM Reserve for 
other purposes eligible under Measure F as it deems appropriate.  
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
Basic Recreational Amenities:  Simple features that support a passive or low intensity outdoor 
recreational experience, usually including a natural surface trail, gravel or dirt parking, portable 
or temporary restrooms, and minimal signage. 
 
Initial Public Access: Earliest feasible public access consistent with the District’s responsibility to 
protect agricultural, scenic, and biotic resources as well as all applicable legal requirements. 
Such access is limited to low-impact outdoor recreational use which may include permit 
programs, docent-led tours, and minimal improvements that create basic recreational 
amenities, prior to the development of and/or full implementation of a Master Plan for full 
public use. 
 
Low-impact, Low-cost Approach:  Providing passive or low intensity, environmentally-sensitive 
outdoor public recreation opportunities, through construction, operation, and maintenance of 
minimal improvements providing basic recreational amenities.  This approach allows for safe 
public access while minimizing both impacts to the natural environment and the cost of long-
term operation and maintenance.  
 
Minimal Improvements:  Enhancement of existing features of the property such as ranch roads, 
fire roads, parking areas, trails or similar existing features, or construction of new basic 
recreational amenities prior to the development of and/or full implementation of a Master Plan 
for full public use.  These improvements may require some preliminary planning, and may be 
capitalized in accordance with applicable policy. 
 
Operation and Maintenance:  Management of natural resources, maintenance of built 
infrastructure, and related programming in support of the operation of District-protected lands 
intended for recreational use. 
 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update (February 20, 2015 revision) 
Page 4 of 5 



 
Recreational Land. Property acquired or protected with District sales tax funds that is intended 
for public use.  Recreational lands may include lands subject to conservation easements held by 
the District, or properties owned by the District in fee-title. 
 
Reimbursement to Partners: Payments to a receiving entity accepting fee title or other interest 
in a recreational property purchased by the District. These payments are to be made, in 
accordance with the Expenditure Plan, for the purpose of securing initial public access to the 
property and supporting operation and maintenance costs directly resulting from that early 
access.  
 
Appendices:  

A. Measure F including District Expenditure Plan 
B. Board of Directors Resolution 07-0666 
C. Board of Directors Resolution 13-0410 
 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
DRAFT Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy update (February 20, 2015 revision) 
Page 5 of 5 



 

 

 

 

 

District Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy 

Appendix A.  Measure F including District Expenditure Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  













 

 

 

 

 

District Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy 

Appendix B.  Board of Directors Resolution 07-0666 
 

 

 

 

  





 

 

 

 

 

District Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy 

Appendix C.  Board of Directors Resolution 13-0410 
 

 

 

 

  








	AGENDA  04-09-2015
	SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE
	FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION
	SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE
	FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

	FOC Unapproved Minutes 03.05.15
	SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE

	Memo to FOC
	combined IPAOM files for April 9, 2015 mtg
	Appendix title sheets




